
           

 
AGENDA

ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING
June 3, 2013–8:30 a.m.

Escambia County Central Office Complex
3363 West Park Place, Room 104

             

1. Call to Order.
 

2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.
 

4. Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

A. Z-2013-11
 

  Applicant: Frank J. Sanders, Owner
Address: 10200 Pensacola Boulevard
From: C-1, Retail Commercial District, (cumulative) (25 du/acre)
To: C-2, General Commercial and Light Manufacturing District

(cumulative) (25 du/acre)
 

B. Z-2013-12
 

  Applicant: Susan Thibodeaux, Owner
Address: 7649 Mobile Highway
From: R-2, Single-Family District (cumulative), Low-Medium Density

(seven du/acre)
To: AG, Agricultural District, Low Density (1.5 acres/du)

 

C. Z-2013-04
 

  Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy"  Page, Agent for Poly Surveying  
Address: 2842 Nowak Dairy Road 
From: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture Districts, Gross Density (one du/five

acres)
To: V-2, Villages Single Family Residential, Gross Density (two du/acre) 

 

5. Public Hearings.



 

6. Adjournment.
 



   

Planning Board-Rezoning   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 06/03/2013  

CASE : Z-2013-11
APPLICANT: Frank J Sanders, Owner 

ADDRESS: 10200 Pensacola Boulevard 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 09-1S-30-1101-000-009
FUTURE LAND USE: C, Commercial  

DISTRICT: 5  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 07/11/2013 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: C-1, Retail Commercial District (cumulative) (25 du/acre)

TO: C-2, General Commercial and Light Manufacturing District (cumulative) (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Commercial (C) Future Land Use (FLU)
category is intended for professional office, retail, wholesale, service and general business
trade. Residential development may be permitted only if secondary to a primary commercial
development. Range of allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional
Office, Light Industrial, Recreational Facilities, Public and Civic. The maximum residential
density is 25 dwelling units per acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development densities and
intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial and Industrial



Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to C-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Commercial
Future Land Use category as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1 because the current future land use
category allows for various commercial operations. The request to C-2 is consistent with FLU
1.5.3 due to the fact the parcel will be using the existing public roads, utilities and service
infrastructure.  Also this request encourages redevelopment of underutilized property.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.14. C-1 Retail Commercial District (cumulative). This district is composed of lands and
structures used primarily to provide for the retailing of commodities and the furnishing of
selected services. The district provides for various commercial operations where all such
operations are within the confines of the building and do not produce undesirable effects on
nearby property. New residential uses located in a commercial FLU category are only permitted
as part of a predominantly commercial development in accordance with Policy FLU 1.3.1 of the
Comprehensive Plan.

6.05.16. C-2 General Commercial and Light Manufacturing District (cumulative). This
district is composed of certain land and structures used to provide for the wholesaling and
retailing of commodities and the furnishing of several major services and selected trade shops.
The district also provides for operations entailing manufacturing, fabrication and assembly
operations where all such operations are within the confines of the building and do not produce
excessive noise, vibration, dust, smoke, fumes or excessive glare. Outside storage is allowed
with adequate screening being provided (see section 7.01.06.E.). 

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land Development
Code.  The parcel fronts Pensacola Blvd, a major commercial arterial roadway.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area. Within the
500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts C-1, C-2 and ID-1. There
are 7 vacant parcels, 2 churches, 15 commercial parcels, and 4 single family homes.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.



Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not indicated on
the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review process will
be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural
environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern due to the
fact the parcel fronts a commercial roadway with a predominant pattern of intense commercial
development.  

Attachments
Z-2013-11



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2013-11 



N PALAFOX ST

BO
W

MA
N 

AV
E

FO
W

LE
R 

AV
E

CO
VE

 A
VE

E TEN MILE RD
W TEN MILE RD

W NINE MILE RD

BE
TM

AR
K 

RD

CHANDLER ST

S HIGHW
AY 29

UN
TR

EI
NE

R 
AV

E

HA
LE

Y 
LN

CARO ST

BUSH ST

W NINE AND ONE HALF MILE RD

CARLTON RD

FRETZ ST

RAYMAR ST

E NINE MILE RD

EAGLE ST

W HOOD DR

AS
HT

ON
 B

RO
SN

AH
AM

 D
R

SENEGAL DR

NIMS LN

CRAFT ST

OLD DAIR Y  LN

BROKEN ARROW LN

W
AL

BR
ID

GE
 S

T VI
NE

YA
RD

 L
N

HOLS BERRY PL
TA

RA D
AWN 

CI
R

DO
RI

S 
AV

E

DUKE AVE

SPRAGUE DR

MC
AR

TH
UR

 L
N

MIL
L B

RO
OK

 D
R

EAGLE  TER

MCKINNON LN

GAT E WAY LN

E HOOD DR

DU
RN

EY
 D

R

CA
MA

RE
E 

PL

TOMMY ST

IVANHOE AVE

PENSACOLA BLVD

EDITH LN

EVENING FALLS D R

DE
WEY ST

CAMBRIDGE AVE

HAWKINS ST

DYKES RD
ROMAR DR

CO
VE

 A
VE

PARCELS selection
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2013-11
LOCATION & WETLANDS MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



N PALAFOX ST

RAYMAR ST

PENSACOLA BLVD

E TEN MILE RD
W TEN MILE RD

W NINE AND ONE HALF MILE RD

OM
AR

 A
VE ST CHRISTOPHER RD

S 
HI

GH
W

AY
 2

9

LY
MA

N 
DR

FO
W

LE
R 

AV
E

EVENING F A LL
S 

DR

S 
HI

GH
W

AY
 2

9

ID-1

C-1

C-2

C-2
R-5

C-1

VM-2

R-3

V-3GBDVM-2

R-3

R-R

C-2

GID

R-4

R-4

PARCELS selection
parcel_cama_Buffer20
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 330 660 990

Ft

Z-2013-11
ZONING MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



C
I

MU-U

MU-S

N PALAFOX ST

RAYMAR ST

PENSACOLA BLVD

E TEN MILE RD

W NINE AND ONE HALF MILE RD

W TEN MILE RD

ST CHRISTOPHER RD

EVENING F A LL
S 

DR

parcel_cama_Buffer20
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 290 580 870

Ft

Z-2013-11
FUTURE LAND USE MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



N PALAFOX ST

PENSACOLA BLVD

RAYMAR ST

E TEN MILE RD
W TEN MILE RD

ST CHRISTOPHER RD

parcel_cama_Buffer20
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 250 500 750

Ft

Z-2013-11
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SANDERS 
MANUFACTURED 
HOUSING

SANDERS 
MANUFACTURED 
HOUSING

SFD VACANT

OFFICE
SFD

SFD, OFFICE
V STORMWATER

STORMWATER

V

V

SFD REPAIR 
SERVICE

STORAGE

WAREHOUSE DISTRIBUTION

V WAREHOUSE 
ANTIQUES

CHURCH
CHURCH

OFFICE

SFD

SFD

WASTELAND

MINERAL 
PROCESSING

STORM-
WATER

V

V

WAREHOUSE



N PALAFOX ST

PENSACOLA BLVD

RAYMAR ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 125 250 375

Ft

Z-2013-11
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



PUBLIC HEARING SIGN



LOOKING NORTH ALONG PENSACOLA BLVD AND SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING NORTHEAST



LOOKING EAST ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING SOUTHEAST



LOOKING SOUTH ALONG PENSACOLA BLVD & SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING SOUTHWEST FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING WEST FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING NORTHWEST FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY



















   

Planning Board-Rezoning   4. B.           
Meeting Date: 06/03/2013  

CASE : Z-2013-12
APPLICANT: Aubrey James & Susan Thibodeaux 

ADDRESS: 7649 Mobile Hwy 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 17-1S-31-4201-000-000

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU-S, Mixed-Use
Suburban

 

DISTRICT: 1  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: NA 

BCC MEETING DATE: 07/01/2013 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: R-2, Single-Family District (cumulative), Low-Medium Density (seven du/acre)

TO: AG, Agricultural District, Low Density (1.5 acres/du)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land
Use (FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting
compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Allowed uses
include Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office,Recreational Facilities,and Public
and Civic. The minimum residential density is two dwelling units per acre and the maximum
residential density is ten dwelling units per acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development densities and



intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial and Industrial
Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to AG is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use
Mixed-Use Suburban as stated in CPP FLU 1.1.1 and 1.3.1. The densities and allowable uses
are compatible with those provided for in the Future Land Use category.The MU-S category
allows for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill
development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. The request to AG is also
consistent with FLU 1.5.3, as the parcel is supported by existing infrastructure and utility
services.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.07. R-2 Single-Family District (cumulative), Low-Medium Density. 
This district is intended to be a single-family residential area with large lots and low population
density. The maximum density is seven dwelling units per acre.

6.05.01. AG Agricultural District, Low Density.
This district is intended to identify those areas used primarily for farming, and/or the raising of
livestock, and silviculture. A primary purpose of this district is to provide for the continuation and
expansion of viable agricultural activities within the county by providing for compatibility among
permitted uses and by preserving open spaces through low district-wide residential densities.
The maximum density is 1.5 acres per dwelling unit.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land Development
Code. The applicant's zoning request will in fact reduce the maximum residential density on the
parcel, will encourage the preservation of open spaces and provide for the desired permitted
primary uses. Based on observations during the on-site visit, the requested AG zoning will be
comparable in intensity to the uses of existing surrounding parcels. 

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area. Within the
500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts AG, R-2, R-5, R-6, and
R-R. During the site visit staff identified 18 single family residences, 6 vacant residential parcels,
2 mobile homes, 1 state park parcel, 1 timberland parcel, 1 Emerald Coast Utilities owned
parcel, 1 agriculture-residential parcel and the county's equestrian center which is located
across from the subject property.



CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS

According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not indicated on
the subject property. When applicable, further review will be necessary to determine if there
would be any significant adverse impact on the natural environment.

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 

The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern. The
surrounding area is a mixture of single residential dwellings and agricultural land with routine
agricultural related uses and activities. The proposed amendment to Agricultural zoning would
be compatible with the existing surrounding uses. 

Attachments
Z-2013-12
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Looking Northwest from Parcel



Looking Southwest from Parcel



Looking North from Parcel



Looking Northeast from Parcel



Looking South from Parcel



Looking Southeast from Parcel



Looking Southwest from Mobile Hwy

































   

Planning Board-Rezoning   4. C.           
Meeting Date: 06/03/2013  

CASE : Z-2013-04
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Poly Surveying 

ADDRESS: 2842 Nowak Dairy Road 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 36-1N-31-2000-000-000; 36-1N-31-1200-000-000

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU-S, Mixed-Use
Suburban

 

DISTRICT: 5  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 07/11/2013 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture Districts, Gross Density (one du/five acres)

TO: V-2, Villages Single Family Residential, Gross Density (two du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land
Use (FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting
compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Range of
allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The minimum residential density is two dwelling units per acre and
the maximum residential density is ten dwelling units per acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development densities and



intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial and Industrial
Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to V-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use
category MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. as the parcel is currently compatible with the
allowable densities and uses within the FLU category.  The parcel is accessing the existing
public roads and if development occurs, the applicant may expand the use of utilities and service
infrastructures.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.22 VAG 2-Gross Density (one dwelling unit per five acres).
Minimum lot size = five acres unless clustered.
If clustered, minimum lot size = one acre.

A. Intent and purpose.

2. Intent and purpose of VAG 2 district. This district is characterized by the following types of
agricultural lands:

(a) Small rural land areas of highly productive agricultural soils that may not be economically
viable in a mainstream fanning operation due to their size, and changes being undertaken in the
surrounding area; or
(b) Rural land areas with a mix of small farm operations and a typical rural residential density of
one unit per four acres. The soils of these areas are least valuable for agricultural production
and most suitable for future conversion out of the rural land market; or
(c) Rural land areas which are not being used to support large farming operations, and that are
characterized by a mix of natural resources and soils typically unsuitable for urban residential
densities or other urban uses unless sewered.

6.05.24. V-2, Villages Single-Family Residential--Gross density (two units per acre).
These maximum densities may or may not be attainable based on other code provisions and
site-specific conditions.

A. Intent and purpose of V-1 through V-3 districts. Single-family detached residential district
characterized by urban land development patterns with residential subdivision densities varying
from one unit per acre to five units per acre. Mobile homes are not allowed. No minimum lot size
is required for new subdivisions, but development must meet overall maximum density
requirements. V-2A may be used in any AIPD overlay area with a compatible future land use
designation. Density will be determined by the accident potential zone density allowed for their
property, not to exceed three d.u./acre. In AIPD-2, density is limited to three d.u./acre. Refer to
article 11 for uses and densities allowed in V, villages single-family residential areas located in
the Airport/Airfield Environs. Structures within Airport/Airfield Environs, Zones, and Surfaces
remain subject to the height definitions, height restrictions, and methods of height calculation set
forth in article 11. 
 



FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land Development
Code because the V-2 zoning district allows for single family residential development with more
density and allowable uses; however, the maximum densities may or may not be attainable
based on other code provisions and site-specific conditions.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment would not be compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts VR-1 and
VAG-2; with 41 single family residential homes, and 8 vacant parcels, with the majority of the
parcels being one acre in size. The request to V-2 would allow for two dwelling units per acre,
which would contradict the surrounding VR-1 zoning which allows for one dwelling unit per four
acres.  If the request is granted, incompatibility can arise from either land use or structure size
and design.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the survey provided by the applicant, wetlands were indicated on the subject
property, which may impact the amount of land to be developed for any future projects.  When
applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review process will be necessary to determine
the total acres that may be developed and if there would be any significant adverse impact on
the natural environment.

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 



The proposed amendment would not result in a logical and orderly development pattern.  The
surrounding area is currently designated as village rural and village agriculture zoning which
depicts one acre in size or larger for a single family home.  The request to V-2 is more intense
than the existing zoning and existing development.  It would allow for two dwellings units per
acre unlike the existing low density development of one dwelling unit per four acres.
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500‐ft Mailing List 

Obtained from the Escambia County Property Appraiser website (www.escpa.org)

Looking south from subject property



Looking northwest along Highway 97 
from subject property 



Looking southeast along 
Highway 97 from subject 

property



Looking north down Nowak Dairy Road



Looking onto subject property from 
Nowak Dairy Road



L ki th f th lLooking north from the parcel on 
Nowak Dairy Road



Looking southeast toward 
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(The motion passed unanimously.) 1

MR. TATE:  The rezoning hearing package 2

with staff's Findings-of-Fact and legal 3

advertisement will be marked and included in 4

the record as Composite Exhibit A for all of 5

today's case. 6

(Composite Exhibit A, Rezoning Package 7

with Findings-of-Fact and Legal Advertisement, 8

was identified and admitted.)  9

MR. TATE:  There is one case to be heard 08:43 10

today.  The first rezoning application for 11

consideration is Case Number Z-2013-04, which 12

requests the rezoning of 2842 Nowak Dairy Road 13

from VAG-2, Villages Agriculture District, to 14

V-3, Villages Single-Family Residential, as 15

requested by the applicant. 16

Members of the Board, has there been any 17

ex parte communications between you and the 18

applicant or the applicant's agents, attorneys 19

or witnesses or with fellow Planning Board 08:44 20

members or anyone from the general public 21

prior to the hearing?  Have you visited the 22

property?  Also please disclose if you are a 23

relative or business associate of the 24

applicant or applicant's agent.25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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Ms. Sindel, we'll start with you.1

MS. SINDEL:  No to all the above.  2

MR. WINGATE:  No to all the above.  3

MR. TATE:  No to all.  4

MR. WOODWARD:  No to all.  5

MR. GOODLOE:  No to all.  6

MS. HIGHTOWER:  No to all.  7

MS. ORAM:  No to all. 8

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Staff, was notice 9

of the hearing sent to all interested parties?  08:44 10

MS. MEADOR:  Yes, sir. 11

MR. TATE:  Was notice of the hearing 12

posted on the subject property?  13

MS. MEADOR:  Yes, sir.14

MR. TATE:  Staff will now present the maps 15

and photographs for Case Z-2013-04. 16

(Presentation of maps and photographs.)  17

MS. CAIN:  Case Z-2013-04, 2242 Nowak 18

Dairy Road.  This is our location map showing 19

the parcel in question.  This is the zoning 08:45 20

radius showing the VAG-2 with the surrounding 21

VR-1.  This is the Future Land Use Map, Mixed 22

Use Suburban.  This is the existing land use 23

map.  24

This is the aerial photograph of the 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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subject property.  This is our zoning sign 1

that was placed on the property.  This is 2

looking south across from the subject 3

property.  Looking northwest along Highway 97 4

from the subject property.  Looking southeast 5

along Highway 97 from the property.  This is 6

looking north down Nowak Dairy Road.  Looking 7

onto the subject property from Nowak Dairy 8

Road.  Looking north from the parcel.  Looking 9

southeast toward Highway 97 and Sherrilane.  08:46 10

     That's concludes our photographs and maps. 11

MR. TATE:  Would the applicant please come 12

forward or the agent for the applicant?  Are 13

you the agent?  14

MR. LACOSTE:  I'm the engineer 15

representing the project for the applicant.  16

He's here as well if he needs to come forward.  17

MR. TATE:  Who is going to be representing 18

today and who's going to be a witness?  19

MR. LACOSTE:  I guess representing is T.J. 08:46 20

Monti.  21

MR. TATE:  Mr. Monti, can we swear you in?  22

(T.J. Monti sworn.) 23

MR. TATE:  Please state your full name and 24

address for the record.25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

12

MR. MONTI:  It's Anthony Joseph Monti, 1

Junior.  I live at 2506 Overlook Drive.  It's 2

in Loxley, 36551. 3

MR. TATE:  Have you received a copy of the 4

rezoning hearing package with the staff's 5

Findings-of-Fact?  6

MR. MONTI:  My representatives have that 7

for me.  8

MR. TATE:  Do you understand that you have 9

the burden of providing substantial and 08:47 10

competent evidence that the proposed rezoning 11

is consistent with the Comp Plan, furthers the 12

goals, objectives and policies of the 13

Comprehensive Plan and is not in conflict with 14

any portion of the County's Land Development 15

Code?  16

MR. MONTI:  Yes, sir.  17

MR. TATE:  Is there anything you would 18

like to present to the Board at this time?  19

MR. MONTI:  I'm okay right now, sir.  08:47 20

MR. TATE:  Okay.  Staff will go ahead -- 21

if you guys want to have a seat up front, we 22

will have the staff presentation at this time. 23

(Staff Presentation by Allyson Cain.)24

MS. CAIN:  Allyson Cain, Urban Planner.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

krmeador
Void

krmeador
Highlight
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This is a request to go from VAG-2, Village 1

Agriculture, to V-3, Village Single-Family.  2

The actual parcel, it did meet all of the 3

criteria.  The only one criteria -- there were 4

some wetlands on the property for Criterion 5

(5).  There were some wetlands that were 6

indicated on the subject property that the 7

boundary survey that was presented by the 8

applicant and that would be addressed at the 9

time of development review before any 08:48 10

development is done.  But this particular 11

parcel it did meet all the criteria.  If you 12

want me to go into detail, I can.  13

MR. TATE:  Mr. Monti, is that okay?  14

MR. MONTI:  Yes, sir. 15

MR. TATE:  Do you have any questions for 16

staff?  17

MR. MONTI:  No, sir.  18

MR. WOODWARD:  Mr. Chairman, is anyone 19

speaking other than the applicant? 08:49 20

MR. TATE:  That's where we're going right 21

now.  22

Mr. Monti, in just a moment we're going to 23

open this up to public comment.  Before we 24

reach that point, do you have anything that 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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you or your fellow engineers would like to 1

present to the Board without getting into the 2

details of the actual project itself, just 3

dealing with the land and the rezoning?  4

MR. MONTI:  Yes, I would like to go to the 5

engineer.  6

MR. TATE:  Please come forward.  Please 7

state your name and address for the record.  8

THE WITNESS:  My name is Vince LaCoste, my 9

address is 1750 Winterberry Street, Mobile, 08:49 10

Alabama. 11

MR. TATE:  If we could have you sworn in.  12

(Vince LaCoste sworn.) 13

MR. TATE:  Could you hold the microphone 14

to see -- we're getting some -- 15

MR. LACOSTE:  Can you hear me?  16

MR. TATE:  Is that better, folks?  17

MR. LACOSTE:  I can speak up.  18

MR. TATE:  Just speak up for now.  19

Mr. LaCoste, your position in this 08:49 20

project?  21

MR. LACOSTE:  I'm a civil engineer that's 22

going to be designing the streets and the 23

roads. 24

MR. TATE:  A legal question:  Do we need 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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to vet his credentials?  1

MR. WEST:  It depends on the testimony 2

he's going to give.  3

MR. TATE:  Are you giving expert testimony 4

today in regards to this?  5

MR. LACOSTE:  No, I'm just speaking about 6

the generalities of the project.  7

MR. TATE:  Please go ahead.  8

MR. WOODWARD:  Let me ask him a question.  9

Are you a sealed engineer?  08:50 10

MR. LACOSTE:  Yes, sir.  11

MR. WOODWARD:  In Alabama and Florida? 12

MR. LACOSTE:  Yes, sir, Florida, as well. 13

MR. WOODWARD:  Thank you.  14

MR. LACOSTE:  My name is Vince LaCoste.  15

I'm with Poly Surveying and Engineering.  16

We're representing the owner on this project.  17

What we are doing is putting in a residential 18

subdivision with lots that are going to front 19

the street and have streets themselves new 08:50 20

that are built within the subdivision.  21

We have hired a biologist who's delineated 22

wetlands and we have created our layout to 23

minimize impact to the wetlands.  We still, 24

obviously, have a lot to go through 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

16

permittingwise, but we're looking at a minimal 1

to wetlands of maybe a quarter acre or less.  2

So I just kind of wanted to generally state 3

that while there are wetlands on the project, 4

we have based the design on minimizing the 5

effect on the wetlands.  That's all I really 6

have to say for now.  7

MR. TATE:  Thank you. 8

MR. LACOSTE:  Thank you. 9

MR. TATE:  Mr. Monti, do you have anything 08:51 10

else or any direct questions for your witness?  11

MR. MONTI:  No, sir.  12

MR. TATE:  All right.  We're going to move 13

into public comment.  For those members of the 14

public who wish to speak on this matter, 15

please note that the Planning Board bases its 16

decision on the criteria and exceptions 17

described in Section 2.08.02.D of the Escambia 18

County Land Development Code.  During its 19

deliberations the Planning Board will not 08:51 20

consider general statements of support or 21

opposition.  Accordingly, please limit your 22

testimony to the criteria and exceptions 23

described in Section 2.08.02.D.  24

Please also note that only those 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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individuals who are present and give testimony 1

on the record at this hearing before the 2

Planning Board will be allowed to speak at the 3

subsequent hearings before the BCC.4

A couple of things.  Could you please put 5

up on the Board, as well, the six criteria?  I 6

know a lot of you have opinions in regard to 7

this matter.  Your opinion needs to be based 8

on one of these reasons that we'll see 9

shortly.  The criteria right here, these are 08:52 10

the criteria that you need to use to say why 11

you either agree or disagree with this 12

project.  13

And then, also, just so that we have a 14

time for everybody, you will have only three 15

minutes to speak.  We will have a timer.  It 16

may or may not be on the Board just depending 17

on the visibility.  We'll see here.  18

Also, as you speak -- if you don't want to 19

speak, I want to remind you that if you 08:52 20

actually want to say something at the Board of 21

County Commission meeting you have to speak in 22

this meeting, not just sign up and have an 23

opinion at this meeting.  These are in no 24

order except as they were given to me, so 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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we'll go ahead and get started right now.  1

Mr. Peter Hurd.  Would you please come 2

forward?  And also Mr. Hurd, if you wouldn't 3

mind pulling the mike and speaking directly 4

into it so we get -- that works.  Please state 5

your full name and address for the record.  6

MR. HURD:  Peter Hurd, 2662 Sherrilane 7

Drive.  8

MR. TATE:  Please be sworn in. 9

(Peter Hurd sworn.) 08:53 10

MR. HURD:  Let's see.  I'll go down the 11

list.  Comprehensive Plan, I really can't find 12

any faults with the Comprehensive Plan.  I'm 13

not sure which one, whether Land Development 14

Code, is that what entails the zoning, would 15

be the different zonings?  16

MR. TATE:  Both the Comprehensive Plan and 17

the Land Development Code support the actual 18

zoning.19

MR. HURD:  It appears to me that what 08:54 20

they're attempting to do here is not change 21

the zoning by one or two steps, but by about 22

six steps, going from -- I believe now it's 23

about a one per five acre to a five per one 24

acre.  It's not -- that's not what any of the 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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adjacent properties have.  Most of the 1

adjacent properties, I've lived out there for 2

25 years, they've been held to one acre, two 3

acre, even when they divide off to family 4

members they're divided off to one acre, which 5

two of the parcels on there were divided off 6

from the parent parcel.  You can see those two 7

on Sherrilane Drive.  I guess that would be 8

the compatible surrounding uses, too.  I 9

believe it's in violation of one or both of 08:55 10

those.  11

The effect on the natural environment, 12

there's nothing they can do in that area 13

that's not going to increase the impervious 14

area and increase the runoff into the stream.  15

There's kind of a stream that goes down.  The 16

wetlands they're talking about, there's 17

actually a wet area and it goes through the 18

neighborhood that I live in.  When they 19

increase the impervious area and the runoff 08:55 20

during storms -- right now that road floods 21

during storms -- it's going to increase that 22

level.  I mean, there's no way around that.  23

As far as the development patterns, I also 24

believe it's not keeping with the development 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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patterns because it's increasing the density 1

by, like I said, four or five steps.  I don't 2

understand -- well, I do understand.  It would 3

seem to me it would be more appropriate to 4

rezone this to the V-2, which is 5

three-quarters of an acre.  That's still less 6

than the densities around it.  It would be 7

more appropriate with the surroundings we've 8

got, what they've been doing.  9

MR. TATE:  Mr. Hurd, just so you're aware, 08:56 10

the current zoning is one dwelling unit per 11

five acres and what they're asking for is five 12

dwelling units per acre.  13

MR. HURD:  That seems kind of excessive to 14

me.  If you look at the surrounding areas 15

probably within a couple of miles there's only 16

two pockets, and one of them was off of this 17

same farm, that have been rezoned to increased 18

densities, but both of those were surrounded 19

by undeveloped land, not by a bunch of one and 08:56 20

two acre properties.  This is surrounded by 21

one and two acre properties except for 22

adjacent land owned by the same person.  23

MR. WOODWARD:  Let me ask you a question, 24

Mr. Hurd, so I can orientate myself.  How far 25
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is Sherrilane from the nearest landmark that I 1

would recognize like the welcome center or 2

Pine Forest Road, something like that?  3

MR. HURD:  Are you familiar with going out 4

297 toward Camp Five?  Have you been out that 5

way?  6

MR. WOODWARD:  Not really.  7

MR. HURD:  Publix on Pine Forest Road.8

MR. WOODWARD:  Yes, sir. 9

MR. HURD:  Go out to Publix.  You turn 08:57 10

left immediately past the light.  You go out 11

297.  Where it splits right by a bridge that 12

was recently -- actually, there's a widening 13

project going on right there now.  Where it 14

splits you go to the left and take 97.  Are 15

you still with me?  16

MR. WOODWARD:  I'm still with you.17

MR. HURD:  And then about -- it's probably 18

about a mile past that bridge after the split, 19

after the Y.  That's another thing that I 08:57 20

don't know if it's in the Comprehensive Plan, 21

but if you look at I think developing along 22

Sherrilane with one acre lots is probably a 23

good idea because that's what's already there 24

and that's what's been there historically, but 25
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if you look at the way this land comes, 1

there's one attachment point to 297, which is 2

a major artery.  There's road close on the 3

left and a road close on the right.  I don't 4

see how they're going to be able to put their 5

access onto 97.  They may be putting their 6

access onto Nowak Dairy Road, which is not 7

even close to being able to support 100 units. 8

MR. TATE:  Let me just talk to that 9

briefly, Mr. Hurd.  Thank you for your time.  08:58 10

As we deliberate here at the Planning Board, 11

we do not actually deal with the site specific 12

use of that.  In other words, this project 13

that is pushing this, it could fall apart for 14

reasons that none of us have any control over, 15

including the developers, and that zoning 16

would still stand, so whatever that zoning 17

would support, that's what could still be done 18

on that property.  So this Board has to look 19

at not that there's going to be a subdivision 08:58 20

or whatever, but whatever can be used there 21

and is it compatible with everything in the 22

surrounding area.  We're not going to get too 23

deep in the details of the project itself.  24

MR. HURD:  I guess I should have said I'm 25
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prodevelopment as some of these folks here 1

could probably tell you.  I worked for years 2

for a civil engineering company and did 3

development projects and I'm not opposed to 4

development.  But what concerns me is exactly 5

what you're talking about.  I don't think 6

these gentlemen are trying to do -- it's 47 7

acres.  I don't think they're trying to put 8

200 homes out there, but if their project 9

falls apart, someone could try and put 200 08:59 10

homes out there.  11

MR. TATE:  Thank you for your time.  12

Mr. William Thompson.  Mr. Thompson, would 13

you state your name and address for the record 14

and be sworn in?  15

MR. THOMPSON:  William D. Thompson, 2612 16

Sherrilane Drive.  17

(William D. Thompson sworn.) 18

MR. THOMPSON:  Sir, I didn't understand 19

exactly what specific notes we were to address 09:00 20

on this.  I'm obviously opposed to this 21

project.  But having seen your items, I as 22

well came to that area because of the one 23

house per five acre zoning.  As the other 24

gentleman said, the potential, you're 25
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increasing the density by a factor of 25.  I 1

don't think that that was the intent of the 2

area.  You go to compatibility with 3

surrounding areas, you have people out there 4

with large lots.  They have horses and cattle, 5

I've got deer in my back yard, which that's 6

not really a factor, but compatibility with 7

surrounding uses, I'm saying it's being used 8

for cattle, it's being used for horses.  A lot 9

of people ride horses.  09:01 10

The access, I'm not aware of how this will 11

be accessed.  It will have to be either on 97 12

or Sherrilane Drive.  With the potential for a 13

couple of hundred homes, that limited access 14

will -- it will be a vortex that maybe two or 15

300 cars will have to channel into this vortex 16

and the only way to do that is to access 17

Sherrilane Drive, which will increase the 18

traffic on that road tenfold.  19

Natural environment.  You've got a natural 09:01 20

field with cattle.  There's a lot of 21

absorption going on there.  If that becomes 22

cement, all that water is going to come down 23

as we've seen happen so many times.  24

Development patterns.  I can't address 25
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that.  That's pretty much all I've got to say.1

MR. TATE:  Thank you for your time, 2

Mr. Thompson. 3

MR. THOMPSON:  Thank you.4

MR. TATE:  John Mason.  Mr. Mason, would 5

you state your name and address for the record 6

and be sworn in?  7

MR. MASON:  John C. Mason, Junior, 2719 8

Sandicrest Drive.  9

(John C. Mason, Junior sworn.) 09:02 10

MR. MASON:  All I've got to say is I 11

bought my property about seven years ago 12

because of the area and having the space 13

surrounding me.  In fact, the property that 14

backs up behind me is zoned for approximately 15

two houses per acre, which to me is a 16

reasonable amount for the area.  We already 17

have a severe traffic problem on Sandicrest 18

Drive because of the cut through traffic going 19

north on 97 toward this property.  My big fear 09:03 20

is we're going to have a continued increase of 21

that problem, which is already out of control 22

as it is.  We've made many calls about that, 23

so still working on that issue.  But that's my 24

main concern, the traffic and property values 25
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and just the amount of traffic and other, you 1

know, amount of homes in the area.  Thank you.  2

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  3

Judy Browning. 4

MS. BROWNING:  I don't wish to speak at 5

this time.  6

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  I may need a little 7

help with this one.  Cantell.8

MS. CANTELL:  Ramani Cantell.  9

MR. TATE:  Please state your name and 09:03 10

address.11

MS. CANTELL:  Ramani Cantell, 2539 12

Sherrilane Drive, Cantonment, Florida 32533. 13

(Ramani Cantell sworn.) 14

MS. CANTELL:  My main concern is it's 15

going to vastly affect the properties in that 16

neighborhood basically for sale, because we 17

are actually marketing those properties as big 18

parcels, as parcels with at least a couple of 19

acres or five acres.  When you bring a 09:04 20

development into that area most of the 21

customers that would be interested in 22

properties that are huge parcels, would 23

actually be very concerned about having a 24

development in that area.  25
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Also I'm concerned about the traffic that 1

goes through.  I would like to know for the 2

development where the road is going to be, 3

whether it's going to be towards Sherrilane, 4

Nowak Dairy or 97, because if it is Sherrilane 5

it's definitely going to affect the 6

maintenance of the road.  With a huge amount 7

of homes in that area, we definitely are going 8

to have problems with traffic.  So I really am 9

concerned about that.  Thank you.09:05 10

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  11

John Markowitz.  12

MR. MARKOWITZ:  725 Pinebrook Circle, 13

Cantonment.  14

MR. TATE:  Would you please be sworn in?  15

(John Markowitz sworn.) 16

MR. MARKOWITZ:  One of my primary concerns 17

is the property that adjoins where we live is 18

actually property that we own, as well, where 19

the stream run downs from Nowak Dairy Road 09:06 20

into the development that we live in, 21

Pinebrook Circle Estates.  We have had in the 22

past some severe problems with flooding.  The 23

County was very responsive and took care of 24

that problem to a large extent.  But I'm 25
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concerned, as the gentleman before mentioned, 1

about the absorption rate up there in that 2

area and whether or not that would cause 3

increased problems.  Pinebrook Circle 4

routinely floods as it is when we have heavy 5

rains.  So that's one of the main issues that 6

I have with this development issue aside from 7

the fact that I think it does change to a 8

tremendous level the inherent character of the 9

area in relation to the one to two acres per 09:06 10

home issue.  Those are the two things that 11

interest me the most.  That was the reason we 12

moved there.  Thank you very much.  13

MR. TATE:  Just so everybody understands, 14

too, stormwater runoff, which is basically 15

what we're talking about, is something that 16

the developer has to deal with, has to have on 17

paper, has to have a plan, but it does not 18

come up in this process.  It actually would 19

happen at a later time, which is also a public 09:07 20

meeting.  So just so you're aware that some of 21

these issues that you all are addressing are 22

just simply issues that this Board cannot 23

address.24

MR. MARKOWITZ:  Thank you very much. 25
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MR. TATE:  Thank you.1

Blake Goodwin.  Would you state your name 2

and address for the record?  3

MR. GOODWIN:  Blake Goodwin, 2710 4

Sandicrest Drive, Cantonment, 32533.  5

(Blake Goodwin sworn.) 6

MR. GOODWIN:  My concerns are the same 7

that they mentioned before as far as the 8

increased densities.  We do have traffic 9

issues right now on Sandicrest, which is right 09:07 10

behind Sherrilane.  We bought the property 11

based on the fact that there's space out there 12

and each home has at least one to three acres.  13

And when they're talking putting five acres 14

(sic) per lot, that definitely is a concern as 15

far as the increase in just the traffic and 16

overall population and the effect on the 17

property value.  That's our main concern is 18

that this type of project is going to cause a 19

decrease in property value for future resale.  09:08 20

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  21

MS. SINDEL:  Mr. Tate, while you're 22

calling up the next one, if I might? 23

MR. TATE:  Sure.  24

MS. SINDEL:  I want to remind everyone 25
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that is here for this particular hearing that 1

either way that the Board votes today it will 2

move to the Board of County Commissioners and 3

some of the conversations that you're having 4

with us today that regrettably we keep saying 5

to you how we don't get to discuss that in 6

here or that will be addressed at a later 7

date.  When this goes before the Board of 8

County Commissioners, whether it passes here 9

today or fails, those are broader 09:09 10

conversations that can be held at that time.  11

So it's really important that you understand 12

that when we're finished here today this is by 13

no means finished for either party.  So I 14

strongly encourage you now -- that's one of 15

the reasons Mr. Tate has mentioned to you that 16

by speaking today on this issue that allows 17

you as the issue moves forward to have the 18

opportunity to speak the next time it's heard, 19

which would be at the Board of County 09:09 20

Commissioners meeting.  21

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  22

Dicky Moye.  Mr. Moye, would you state 23

name and address for the record and be sworn 24

in?  25
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MR. MOYE:  Richard "Dicky" Moye, 2872 1

Sherrilane Drive, Cantonment, Florida, 32533.  2

(Richard "Dicky" Moye sworn.) 3

MR. MOYE:  Just to start off, I saw the 4

pictures at the beginning here.  They never 5

gave a picture of the property, the largest 6

side of the property, to Sherrilane.  If you 7

take a look, as well, at the zoning around it, 8

why is this being done so different from 9

everything around?  We're R-2.  Everybody has 09:10 10

talked about the property sizes around.  11

The social economics in the area, I'm very 12

concerned about the change here that's going 13

to be effected on all these landowners here 14

and homeowners.  They're your taxpayers in the 15

county.  They're the hard working people.  I 16

can tell you most of the people I got out and 17

saw did not get a notice in the mail and the 18

sign was around on Nowak Dairy Lane and not 19

Sherrilane where people could see it.  09:10 20

This is zoning -- zoning we thought was to 21

protect our lives and our investments that we 22

make in a community, but in this case we're 23

being asked to allow something like five 24

houses on an acre.  Come on, folks, that 25
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doesn't even fit.  There's nowhere near there 1

anything like that.  People don't want to look 2

on the hillside and see rooftop after rooftop.  3

I think, too, here we've got a situation 4

here -- I am speaking to this, I think, so I 5

don't have to give the topics.  I think we're 6

maybe giving some special interest here to 7

some parties, some parties who want to make a 8

land deal sale at a price they want to sell it 9

for and they've got to cut the property down 09:11 10

in size to be able to make that sale and the 11

heck with the people who live around.  12

You know, the number that you're going to 13

as far as this VAG there's no end to it.  In 14

other words, you're stuck in for a number of 15

homes they need but once they get that zoning 16

they can cut it in half and half again if they 17

want to now they're past you guys.  So our 18

concern is the socioeconomic downfall that 19

could happen to our properties in the area.  09:12 20

The thing is this has been this way out there 21

for years.  People strive to live out here and 22

it's small farms, small ranches, interwoven 23

middle class lives here.  It doesn't matter 24

the size of the house.  It's the size of the 25
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space you own, the property and the 1

spaciousness you have from everyone.  We're 2

very concerned about densely placing houses 3

like this that doesn't fit this area.  4

Basically if it doesn't work out marketing 5

wise to do your deal and to turn around to be 6

able to sale, they're going to sale these 7

properties probably on our nickel.  Meaning, 8

look, you're going to live out here in this 9

rural area, but we're the ones going to be 09:12 10

hurt from this, the reverse.  Basically if 11

your deal doesn't work at the price you want 12

and you have to cut the houses down to that 13

size, take your money somewhere else.  We 14

don't need it.  15

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Mr. Moye.  16

Jeanne Henderly.  Would you please state 17

your name and address for the record?  18

MS. HENDERLY.  My name is Jeanne Henderly 19

and my address is 2715 Sherrilane Drive.  09:13 20

(Jeanne Henderly sworn.) 21

MS. HENDERLY:  I wasn't even going to say 22

anything today but since I have to say 23

something here to be able to say at the next 24

meeting I wanted to share.  I live on 25
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Sherrilane.  I'm right across the street from 1

where this property is going to go in.  We 2

have like a five-and-a-half acre mini farm, we 3

have cows, we have horses, we have some 4

miniature horses.  I have some dairy goats and 5

we also have chickens and ducks and we have a 6

pond on our place.  So we have a thing going.  7

We've been there for 25 years.  I have four 8

children.  We've raised children there.  My 9

little girl, I can still see her riding her 09:13 10

little white pony all over the place.  That's 11

the kind of neighborhood this is.  12

We did build another house on there 13

because we had elderly parents dying of lung 14

cancer and we needed to bring them there, so 15

we built -- there was a small house there 16

already and we just enlarged that house, so 17

we're one of the ones he was talking about.  18

We still have a very farm-like character 19

there.  09:14 20

I have 12 grandchildren who love to come.  21

They ride horses.  I ride horses.  We go up 22

and down Sherrilane and around Sandicrest.  23

There's a lot of traffic.  We've had 24

increasing traffic over time and we have to be 25
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careful while we do that.  I'm so concerned 1

that they're going to put this big subdivision 2

out there.  It's totally going to change the 3

character of our neighborhood and now we 4

have -- you know, there's going to be a lot of 5

kids, a lot of cars.  6

There's an issue about large livestock.  I 7

have a bull and two cows on my property, so 8

there's somewhat of a danger.  We put up 9

electric fencing.  You know, people go by 09:15 10

there and stop and want to look.  It's very 11

attractive and sometimes they get out and want 12

to feed my animals.  So I was thinking, okay, 13

now we're going to have all these homes, maybe 14

100 homes in there with children and now 15

they're going to want to come in there to be 16

in with my large animals.  Now there's a 17

safety issue.  Now it's an insurance issue of 18

maybe getting a million dollar umbrella or 19

something to cover us in case somebody would 09:15 20

get hurt on our property.  21

So from my point of view as a mom and, I 22

guess, I'm probably speaking to some of these 23

issues even though I'm not cataloging them.  24

It's a big concern.  I am very bothered that 25
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they might do this.  It's going to change the 1

whole reason people have moved out there.  2

It's going to change it.  We're now going to 3

be like a subdivision instead of a little 4

country kind of atmosphere that we have.  5

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  6

James Wells.  Mr. Wells, would you state 7

your name and address for the record and be 8

sworn in?  9

MR. WELLS:  James Wells.  I live at 2663 09:16 10

Sherrilane Drive.11

(James Wells sworn.) 12

MR. WELLS:  I live right across the street 13

from this property.  I've lived there for 14

about 20 years or 25.  You get to my age, you 15

don't keep up too good.  I want to address 16

something.  I don't know if it would be proper 17

or not.  You can cut me off if it's not.  18

But the land across the street is a fine 19

parcel of property.  I can understand them 09:17 20

wanting to develop it, but I can't understand 21

five housing units per acre.  I don't think 22

you can either, if you think about it.  23

Why has that come up?  Why are we even 24

here to discuss it?  Because the owner of the 25
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property wanted to sell it and the property 1

has about eight or 10 acres that's going to 2

have to be a holding pond, so you subtract 3

that from the acreage, and now they want to 4

divide it up so they can get the money out of 5

it by putting more houses on the acreage and 6

they're going to make all of us suffer.  7

All of us that have lived there so long 8

and enjoyed all the wide open spaces and moved 9

there for that purpose, we're going to suffer 09:18 10

because there's going to be an ungodly amount 11

of traffic and our kids can't walk out on the 12

highway anymore without running the risk of 13

dying.  So I personally am against it.  Thank 14

you.  15

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  16

(Applause.)  17

MR. TATE:  Karl Henderly.  Would you 18

please state your name and address for the 19

record?  09:18 20

MR. HENDERLY:  Karl Henderly, 2715 21

Sherrilane Drive, Cantonment, Florida.22

(Karl Henderly sworn.) 23

MR. HENDERLY:  It's going to be hard to 24

follow up what my wife had to say and Jimmy, 25
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my next door neighbor, but I endorse all of 1

it.  2

One concern that we have in addition to 3

the complexion of the neighborhood, many of us 4

are getting to the retirement age now, but 5

most of the us work in the city but we want to 6

live in the country and we want to raise our 7

children in the country and our grandchildren, 8

and we want to teach them how to farm, how to 9

raise a garden, how to take care of animals.  09:19 10

We do have large animals.  We have horses 11

and cows and one concern of mine is if there 12

are 150 homes down there, these folks are 13

probably not going to be what you would call 14

country folks, they're not familiar with 15

animals.  And even living as we live now in a 16

relatively rural type setting, I've had the 17

experience of having to get children out of my 18

field.  Kids, especially those that are not 19

raised in the country, don't understand that 09:19 20

you can't crawl under the fence and pet the 21

pretty bull.  You don't mess with a cow that's 22

just had a calf.  You don't get behind a horse 23

and slap it on the rump.  These could have 24

tragic consequences.  25
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Of course, there is the liability issue, 1

as well, but more than that it's the safety of 2

the children.  We do have 12 grandchildren, 3

but we have taught these children how to be 4

careful, how to work with animals and how to 5

make sure that you don't get hurt.  That is a 6

primary concern, because we're talking a large 7

subdivision with all the problems that have 8

already been enumerated, but we're talking a 9

large subdivision with a lot of children who 09:20 10

do not or aren't familiar with large animals 11

and it really concerns me.  Thank you. 12

MR. TATE:  Carter Granat.  Can you state 13

your name and address for the record?  14

MR. GRANAT:  Carter Granat, 697 Pinebrook 15

Circle.  16

(Carter Granat sworn.)  17

MR. GRANAT:  I live on Pinebrook Circle.  18

My land backs up to the Nowak property that is 19

in question here.  All the surrounding homes, 09:20 20

if you look on the overview that was shown 21

earlier, the satellite picture, all the 22

properties are one house per acre, some are 23

one house per two acres, and some of the 24

opinions of some of the people that maybe have 25
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two houses per acre or one house per 1

three-quarters of an acre seems a lot more 2

reasonable.  3

The five houses per acre would be like an 4

aberration to the whole eco of that community 5

out there.  It certainly doesn't take a brain 6

scientist to see that it's not comparable with 7

the land development that's currently in use 8

out there.9

Also, people that travel to work and head 09:21 10

south down Highway 97 where it T's into 297, 11

there's a horrible traffic backup every 12

morning.  I used to live north of that area 13

and oftentimes when I would be behind a line 14

of cars I would take Sherrilane to bop over to 15

297 just to bypass this traffic backlog.  Of 16

course, this is going to get a lot worse if 17

there's a bunch of houses put in there and 18

Sherrilane is going to become a drag strip and 19

it's going to be unsafe for children or horses 09:21 20

or whatever, a lot of things that people used 21

to enjoy out there.  22

Also, twice within the last three weeks I 23

have seen a family of five deer heading from 24

Pinebrook Estates into that Nowak land.  I 25
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know people really don't care about deer a 1

lot, but I do.  I think we would be ruining 2

their habitat if that land was overly 3

developed.  4

Also, I don't want five houses per acre 5

backed up to my property.  I bought that 6

property because it was rural and I had the 7

woods surrounding me.  I would at least like 8

for the people in Pinebrook Estates to be able 9

to buy a swath of woods to buffer us from any 09:22 10

development of that sort.  I also feel that 11

five houses per acre is just horribly wrong 12

and not consistent development with anything 13

around there.  Thank you.  14

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Is there anybody 15

else who wishes to speak on this matter at 16

this time?  If so, I need you to fill this 17

paper out and come forward.  If not, we'll 18

close the public comment section of this 19

presentation.  09:23 20

Would you please state your name and 21

address for the record?  22

MR. ROUGEAU:  My name is Ron Rougeau.  I 23

live at 2684 Sandicrest Drive.  24

MR. TATE:  Is your wife Dr. Debra Rougeau?  25
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MR. ROUGEAU:  Yes.  1

MR. TATE:  I just need to clarify that 2

Mr. Rougeau and I have never met, but his wife 3

works for me.  I just want to make sure that's 4

out in the open.  5

(Ron Rougeau sworn.) 6

MR. ROUGEAU:  Yesterday evening I got a 7

piece of paper saying there was a meeting 8

today, so I don't have a detailed preparation, 9

but from my point of view the change clearly 09:23 10

violates Criterion (3) through (6).  Now, the 11

22 years we've lived there we've seen 12

development but nothing at this scale.  I 13

think the impact on the environment, the 14

infrastructure and the residents would be 15

unsupportable.  Thank you. 16

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Is there anybody 17

else who wishes to speak on this matter?  If 18

you would like to come forward to the stand, 19

that's fine.  Would you state your name and 09:24 20

address for the record, please?  21

MS. HUDGENS:  My name is Dominique 22

Hudgens.  I live at 2700 Sherrilane Drive. 23

MR. TATE:  Would you please be sworn in.  24

(Dominique Hudgens sworn.) 25
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MS. HUDGENS:  What I would like to say is 1

me and my husband, we recently moved to 2

Sherrilane Drive.  And the reason we moved is 3

because we lived in a subdivision and we 4

wanted to have our little girl grow up in the 5

country because that's what me and my husband 6

is used to.  We finally moved out to the 7

country and we found out that a neighborhood 8

like the one we just moved from might possibly 9

move right next door to us.  So our concern is 09:25 10

that -- I'm sorry.  I'm nervous.  But the 11

reason why we moved there and we spent a lot 12

of money was to get into the country life.  13

That's all I wanted to say.  It would be nice 14

to keep it that way.15

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  If there's nobody 16

else who wishes to speak on this matter at 17

this time -- is there anybody else in the 18

audience who wishes to speak on this matter at 19

this time?  If not, at this point we'll close 09:26 20

this portion of the meeting to public comment.21

I would like to ask the Board members if 22

you have any questions of the applicant, staff 23

or members of the public.  I would also like 24

to remind our Board members to stay away from 25
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areas or matters that deal specifically with 1

the use of the site as we understand it today.  2

MS. SINDEL:  I'll start.  I'm going 3

through the criteria kind of my own method.  A 4

lot of my concern has to do with development 5

patterns and compatibility with surrounding 6

uses.  It is a dramatic shift, as I'm sure the 7

applicant recognizes to go from one house per 8

five acres to potentially five homes per one 9

acre.  09:26 10

We, of course, are not looking at whether 11

or not you actually ever develop that, but we 12

look at down the road how it potentially could 13

be developed.  We look at our Comprehensive 14

Plan, our Future Land Use.  These are our 15

guiding factors for the County for many many 16

years to come and I have concern over the 17

dramatic shift.  I'm not addressing some of 18

the other issues because I know from a DRC and 19

development review process other issues such 09:27 20

as runoff, or road and traffic, it would be 21

addressed at that point in time.  22

My primary concerns are development 23

patterns.  These will be significant changed 24

conditions for that part of Escambia County 25
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and in such a manner that I have also concerns 1

from Criterion (5) about effect on the natural 2

environment.  Personally I see out of the six 3

criteria there are three that I have some very 4

strong concerns about.  5

That being said, to address what of this 6

side of the room has stated, it's really 7

important that everyone understand and be very 8

grateful for the process that we have that as 9

property owners and citizens you do always 09:28 10

have the opportunity to come to this Board and 11

request a change in how you use your property 12

and that's an amazing benefit and one that the 13

applicant, of course, is doing today.  So it's 14

nice that the applicant has the opportunity to 15

do that just like it's amazing and important 16

that as citizens you turn around and say yes 17

or not so much.  Those are my main concerns 18

right now.  19

MR. TATE:  Mr. Wingate.  09:28 20

MR. WINGATE:  Mr. Chairman, as I review 21

the total package here and the recommendations 22

and the area, the parcel of property and 23

within a 500-foot radius circle of property of 24

the area and the families that live in that 25
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area presently now and the vacant lot that's 1

subdivided already, there is already a 2

community that's already set up in the 3

surrounding area if you look it from a higher 4

area view.  This was one concern that I was 5

looking at.  6

One thing that's going to happen to 7

Escambia County, the north end is going to be 8

discovered at some point or another and change 9

is going to come, but, you know, sometimes 09:29 10

change comes too fast.  But what I would look 11

at -- looking at it, and I travel 97 12

sometimes, traffic does get heavy at times 13

around the road.  I was looking for some acres 14

up there, too.  Sometimes you're only allowed 15

to do certain things. 16

Looking at this from the purpose that I'm 17

charged to do, I know what my decision will 18

be.  19

MR. TATE:  Do you have any questions?  09:30 20

MR. WOODWARD:  I don't think I have any 21

questions but I have an observation.  And I've 22

lived in several cities that have natural 23

boundaries that require only growth can go one 24

or two or three directions.  It appears to me 25
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that this is a mature community and anything 1

of this nature might well be premature at best 2

and certainly may be incompatible at worse.  3

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  4

Mr. Goodloe.  5

MR. GOODLOE:  I just would like to ask the 6

staff was the applicant given the opportunity 7

to consider other zoning provisions such as 8

V-1?  9

MR. JONES:  Yes.  It's up to the 09:31 10

applicant.  We can only suggest.  We give him 11

the Land Development Code.  It's strictly up 12

to the applicant on what they request for the 13

rezoning.  14

MR. GOODLOE:  With the applicant there was 15

no discussion regarding other zoning?  16

MR. JONES:  Again, it was their choice.17

MR. TATE:  Staff, a couple of questions.  18

If you would, please put up the maps 19

regarding -- that shows the single-family use.  09:31 20

That map.  That would be great.21

Where is this area in conjunction with the 22

project that's now part of our Comprehensive 23

Plan to develop north of here into several 24

villages, walking communities, et cetera, 25
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et cetera?  1

MR. JONES:  The Sector Plan? 2

MR. TATE:  Yes.  3

MR. JONES:  It's way north.4

MR. TATE:  The Sector Plan is way further 5

north than that.  That's what I thought, but I 6

wanted to make sure.  7

At this point is there anything further 8

from staff?  9

MR. JONES:  I want to say something.  Many 09:32 10

issues and concerns came out as far as if the 11

site is developed into a subdivision, which we 12

do not know.  That's what's being presented 13

today.  We do want to make it perfectly clear 14

the density is gross density.  15

There's so many other factors, other 16

factors that have to be developed if an 17

applicant decides to put in a subdivision.  18

There a tremendous amount of review by the 19

County, even sometimes by the FDOT, 09:33 20

stormwater, all of those things, and the 21

County definitely would take into 22

consideration.  If the Board approves it, it's 23

not just an overnight process, which I know 24

they know that.  Mr. Hurd understands this. 25
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Subdivision is a very very complicated complex 1

process.  Some of them get off the ground, 2

some of them do not for factors that -- 3

economics, the land itself, permitting, all of 4

those things.  So it's just not five dwellings 5

per acre.  It may be limited to that based 6

upon so many other issues that the County 7

definitely has to address and review.  8

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  I'm not sure how 9

many of our folks here today actually reviewed 09:34 10

the entire packet online, but the applicant 11

was pretty clear what their goal is for this 12

project.  Their overall density quite a bit 13

less than the five dwelling units per acre, 14

which I understand.  15

At this point the applicant, you have the 16

right to address any issues that have come up 17

through this discussion.  If you would like to 18

leave it and go right to a vote, but you all 19

do have the ability to come forward at this 09:34 20

point and address the Board with any issues 21

that have come up during this discussion. 22

MR. MONTI:  Thank you.  Vince will speak 23

for us.  24

MR. LACOSTE:  Vince LaCoste.  I would like 25
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to explain our thought process and how we got 1

here and why this five units per acre because 2

that would concern me, too, if I was these 3

people.  There's 48 acres on this parcel.  4

About 15 of it is wetlands and can't be used.  5

We will not be using.6

MR. TATE:  Would be incorporated into 7

the -- 8

MR. LACOSTE:  It would be left natural.  9

We can't do anything with it, about 15 of the 09:35 10

acres.  There's approximately another five to 11

ten, maybe five to eight acres, of course, the 12

design hasn't been done yet, but that would be 13

either detention, or streets or easements, 14

that type of thing.  So we're left then with 15

not 48 acres, we're left with maybe 25 or 16

28 acres that we can actually use and develop.17

Really the reason for the zoning request 18

was because of the dimensions of the lots, not 19

because of the density per acre.  Now, I 09:35 20

understand that yeah, of course, we can get 21

the zoning and go do whatever we want to.  I 22

would be concerned about that, too.  I don't 23

know if there's another zoning or if there's 24

restrictions we can put on ourselves with 25
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density.  I know some areas can put 1

restrictions on density, but our plan is about 2

1.57 units per gross acre out there, not five.  3

It's 1.76 is the exact number of what our 4

density we're proposing would be.5

MS. SINDEL:  You understand our 6

predicament that we have to make a decision 7

based off -- I mean, honestly if you walked in 8

with plans ready to go, we don't even look at 9

those, because once we change it literally the 09:36 10

owner can walk out the door and sell it and 11

somebody can put five homes per acre.  12

As Mr. Jones will tell you from a County 13

standpoint if it were to pass, if the change 14

passed us and passed with the Board of County 15

Commissioners, then Mr. Jones has pointed out 16

the road to create a subdivision is a very 17

long one and that is where restrictions could 18

be placed, but that's only -- we don't get to 19

look that far.  We have to look past that.  09:37 20

What we have to look at is if we change it 21

what's the worse -- I don't like to use the 22

term worse case -- what is the highest amount 23

of development that could occur and with this 24

request the highest is five per acre. 25
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MR. LACOSTE:  So at this forum is there no 1

restriction on density that can be placed?  2

MR. JONES:  Not at this point.  3

MR. TATE:  Mr. Jones, could you please 4

speak to that and maybe walk us through the 5

process of what we could do possibly at this 6

meeting and in conjunction in the future with 7

the developer?  8

MR. JONES:  Steve, I need you for this.  9

Would it be possible, Steve, that maybe the 09:37 10

applicant could make a request for a different 11

zoning?  12

MR. TATE:  I know you can't promise them 13

anything at this meeting.  That's not what I'm 14

looking at.  15

MR. WEST:  They can always if they want to 16

change their request to a different zoning 17

district.  18

MR. TATE:  Well, this Board can choose to 19

rezone to a lower case without the applicant 09:38 20

doing that.  We have the right to do that with 21

or without the applicant's blessing, so I'm 22

not really talking about that.  I'm talking 23

about beyond that if we chose to do something 24

that still gave them the buildable build-out 25
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that they were doing, what's the process the 1

developer has to go through to lock that in?  2

Would it end up being like a PUD?  3

MR. JONES:  He would have to issue a final 4

plat and all of those things once it comes 5

through the subdivision process, the 6

preliminary plat and final plat.  He can place 7

those restrictions on himself.  As the County, 8

we will approve the plat, but we don't enforce 9

the plat.  He can put in restrictive 09:38 10

covenants.  He can put those in place, so he 11

can self-govern himself.  A PUD is an option.12

MR. WOODWARD:  Mr. Jones, restrictive 13

covenants are only good for 20 years.  14

MS. SINDEL:  The County doesn't enforce 15

those.  16

MR. LACOSTE:  I don't think anybody is 17

going to be happy here with restrictive 18

covenants.  Nobody here is going to want to 19

hear that we're self-enforcing.  09:39 20

MR. WOODWARD:  No, but the issue is that a 21

resident there can.  Any person who lives in 22

an area, I'm not going to use the word 23

subdivision, an area burdened by restrictive 24

covenants can enforce restrictive covenants as 25
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long as he can convince a circuit judge that 1

he has standing.  You know, 19-and-a-half 2

years down the road, you know, lot number one 3

can say something about lot number four not 4

complying with those restrictive covenants and 5

you're off to the courthouse and it's very 6

expensive.  It will be then.  7

MR. LACOSTE:  Let me ask a question about 8

the PUD.  Is that done under any zoning?  9

MR. JONES:  The PUD -- you can do a PUD, 09:40 10

but really it -- you can choose a different 11

zoning category, but a PUD really don't affect 12

the density the way that our PUD standards 13

are. 14

MR. LACOSTE:  So your PUD standards still 15

have to meet the density of the zoning?16

MR. JONES:  Yes, provide some type of 17

unique option, walkability, sidewalks, bike 18

trails, things like that, that could really 19

really -- I don't know.  Something that could 09:40 20

really really be compatible with the 21

surrounding areas. 22

MR. LACOSTE:  What this boils down to is 23

we need a zoning of less than two, but we need 24

to have lots about 85 feet wide and those 25
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85-foot lots are what drove us to pick this 1

density, the width of the lots and the 2

setbacks on those lots.  That's what drove us 3

to pick this density, I mean, pick this 4

zoning, not density.  We need something just 5

under two units per acre and we need to be 6

able to have 85-foot lots and I don't know if 7

there's a better option than we picked.  8

MR. TATE:  Can you give us some help?  9

MR. WOODWARD:  Procedurally can't they ask 09:41 10

for a continuance and come back and do it 11

again?  12

MR. LACOSTE:  We originally requested R-1, 13

but in discussions with staff felt like that 14

this would be a better fitting in the area 15

because there was already the V zoning.  If 16

you look at the subdivision just to the north 17

of ours, yes, they don't have the wetland 18

impacts, they don't have the detention ponds, 19

but if you look at the total density it's 09:41 20

about the same.  Ours is a little denser, but 21

it's close.  22

MR. TATE:  It's on a bigger piece of 23

property.  24

MR. JONES:  Even if you look at the 25
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subdivision that's adjacent to this property, 1

VR-1, one per four acres, those are definitely 2

not four-acre lots.  So that's why we looked 3

at the area.  That VR-1 says 1.4.  That 4

subdivision on Pine Cone is not four-acre lots 5

in there.  So we look at all of those factors.  6

It's really limited on the density.  7

MS. SINDEL:  I understand.  I think, 8

though, the request in front of us right now 9

that we have to make a decision on is going to 09:42 10

be a struggle.  I don't know if -- you know, 11

if the Board can vote on that and then he has 12

another option or does he just say I want to 13

table this, because how is it readvertised 14

because everybody is going to need to know 15

what's happening next that moving forward is 16

the whole kit and kaboodle.17

MR. TATE:  For this Board our decision has 18

to be based on the six criteria.  The staff 19

has presented us a packet in which they have 09:42 20

found favorably in all regards.  So if we 21

chose to do something different we would have 22

to rewrite those arguments in favor of our 23

position, so we need to keep that in mind.  24

MR. JONES:  And still meet the criteria.  25
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It is consistent with the zoning.  With the 1

Future Land Use category Mixed Use Suburban 2

allows two dwelling units per acre, so that is 3

consistent with that.  If you go with V2-A, 4

which is two units per acre, the criteria 5

would still be the same, the site building 6

requirements, all those things would still be 7

the same. 8

MS. SINDEL:  Applicant has to make the 9

decision.  We do not need as the Board to be 09:43 10

making changes to an applicant's application.  11

That's probably the worse grammar I've used in 12

a while.  13

MR. TATE:  Mr. Wingate.  14

MR. WINGATE:  Mr. Chairman, I was looking 15

at the areas of this particular parcel in the 16

packet and the neighborhood and if you've ever 17

developed a subdivision you would know what 18

they were going through.  Sometimes you say 19

I've got all these acres and I've got it zoned 09:44 20

this way and when it all washes down you may 21

end up with a third of what you dreamed about 22

because you've got 15 acres of wetlands.  23

You've got your streets.  Now we've got 24

sidewalks.  All of those are subtractions.  25
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You may think that you've got all these 1

acres and you end up saying, well, I've got 48 2

acres and you may only be able to develop 3

maybe when you count buildable lot sizes, what 4

the size going through and doing the 5

calculations and going through the DRC 6

process, you may end up with maybe 26 acres of 7

only developable buildable lots that you could 8

do your 85 by 130.  So with the wetlands and 9

the ponds and all that, you subtract that off.  09:45 10

Then it won't really destroy the neighborhood 11

because you're going to still have that open 12

land that's there, the wetlands can't be 13

disturbed, the holding pond and everything.  14

I've done a couple of small subdivisions.  15

Sometimes you dream big and you come out 16

medium size. 17

MR. TATE:  Thank you, Mr. Wingate.  18

MR. LACOSTE:  We would like to request 19

that you consider V-2.  We've been looking at 09:45 20

that and feel like it will fit our needs.  I 21

hate to make a decision on the spot.  I have 22

not read it all myself, but at this point I 23

think V-2 is something we might could work 24

with.  It's a density of two units per acre, 25
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which is what we need.  The setbacks appear to 1

work. 2

MR. WOODWARD:  Is that a formal amendment 3

to your application? 4

MR. LACOSTE:  Yes, sir. 5

MR. WOODWARD:  I move that the amendment 6

be permitted, not that we permit the entire 7

thing, but the amendment.  8

MR. TATE:  A motion.  Do we have a second?  9

MS. SINDEL:  Second.  09:46 10

MR. TATE:  All those in favor, raise your 11

right hand. 12

(Board members vote.) 13

(The motion passed unanimously.) 14

MR. TATE:  Staff, as we look at this from 15

the perspective of a V-2, can we support the 16

Findings-of-Fact within a V-2 or do you need a 17

moment?  18

MR. JONES:  We can support it.  The only 19

thing that will change is the zoning.  We can 09:46 20

support it.  21

MR. TATE:  So at this point the 22

Findings-of-Fact do not change.  Both the 23

applicant and staff are in agreement with the 24

Findings-of-Fact.  25
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You accept staff's Findings-of-Fact?  1

MR. LACOSTE:  Yes.  2

MR. TATE:  Is there anybody on this Board 3

who has a question for the applicant or for 4

staff?  5

At this time we will close this meeting to 6

comments and open it up to the Planning Board 7

to deliberate and discuss.  8

MS. SINDEL:  I've done a lot of talking 9

today and it was based on the fact that I had 09:47 10

a lot of concerns about the potential for five 11

homes per acre.  Obviously, a lot of those 12

concerns were alleviated by going to a 13

different zoning which would be two homes max 14

per acre.  I do understand that a lot of the 15

property is not developable.  So it will 16

significantly reduce the overall impact.17

Again, I go back to the statement that if 18

anything, whether it wins or moves past here, 19

please always remember that the Board of 09:47 20

County Commissioners, no matter what's decided 21

here, can change, can make a decision that's 22

completely different than ours.  23

MR. GOODLOE:  Mr. Chairman, I have a 24

motion.  25
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MR. TATE:  Please.1

(Motion by Mr. Goodloe.)2

MR. GOODLOE:  I move that we recommend 3

approval of the rezoning application as 4

amended from VAG-2 to V-2, make this 5

application to the Board of County 6

Commissioners and adopt the Findings-of-Fact 7

provided in the rezoning package here for 8

Z-2013-04. 9

MR. TATE:  We have a motion.  Do we have a 09:48 10

second?11

MR. WINGATE:  I second.  12

MR. TATE:  We have a motion and a second.  13

All those in favor, signify by raising your 14

right hand.  15

(Board members vote.) 16

MR. TATE:  All those against? 17

(Board members vote.) 18

MR. TATE:  The motion fails.  19

(The motion fails three to two.) 09:48 20

MR. TATE:  At this point this ends this 21

rezoning hearing case and we will take a 22

12-minute break.  We will move into our 23

regular Planning Board meeting.  Hold on just 24

a minute, folks.  25
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MR. WEST:  We need a Finding-of-Fact to 1

send to the Board that there is not a 2

rejection of this.  You have to move to reject 3

the amended request and then also have a set 4

of findings that the Board of County 5

Commissioners can consider when this goes to 6

them.  7

MR. WOODWARD:  If you would put the six 8

criteria back.  9

I'll tag this as an amendment to my 09:49 10

colleague's, that we find that the amendment 11

as proposed -- he moved that it be accepted.12

My finding would be that we find it 13

incompatible with surrounding uses, that it 14

changes conditions, that it has a substantial 15

and significant effect on the natural 16

environment and it departs significantly from 17

the development patterns.  18

MR. TATE:  Is that a motion to deny? 19

MR. WOODWARD:  That's a motion. 09:50 20

MS. SINDEL:  Second. 21

MR. TATE:  All those in favor, signify by 22

raising your right hand. 23

(Board members vote.) 24

MR. TATE:  All those against?  25
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(Board members vote.) 1

MR. WINGATE:  The motion carries three to 2

two.  3

(The motion passed three to two.)  4

MR. WEST:  One more little thing.  I 5

assume that that's based on -- you've rejected 6

those findings that the staff made, so I 7

assume that that's -- 8

MR. WOODWARD:  It's based on the live 9

testimony.  09:50 10

MR. WEST:  -- based on what was presented.  11

MR. WOODWARD:  Mr. West, that's -- the 12

couching of that was based upon reviewing the 13

exhibits as opposed to the findings, and, 14

secondly, the consistency of the live 15

testimony.  16

MR. TATE:  This rezoning hearing meeting 17

is now adjourned.  We'll begin our Planning 18

Board meeting at five after.  19

(The Rezoning Hearing concluded at 9:50 09:51 20

a.m.)21

22

23

24
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             My Commission No.:  EE 860695

             My Commission Expires:  02-05-201723

24

25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

krmeador
Void
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